## CHIEF ALBERT LUTHULI LOCAL MUNICIPALITY



# PREVENTION OF LAND INVASION AND MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL OF INFORMAL SETTLEMENTS BY-LAW

**Working Draft for Public Participation** 

**Version 2** 

16 July 2020



CONTROL SHEET	-		
By-Law Number			
By-Law Name	CHIEF ALBERT LUTHULI LOCAL MUNICIPALITY: PREVENTION OF LAND INVASION AND MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL OF INFORMAL SETTLEMENTS BY-LAW 2020		
By Law Status	New		
Date of last Approval	New		
Review / Development	By-Law to be reviewed as and when necessary.		
Date of next review	This By-Law shall remain effective until such time approved otherwise by Council		
Purpose	The purpose of the Land Invasion By-Law is to help in the combat land invasion which tends to put the Municipality under pressure in terms of service delivery. Also if left unchecked, has a tendency of making the urban area haphazard, as the urban area becomes shapeless.		
Aims and objectives	The Land Invasion By-Law will ensure that there will be limited and of no invasion of land and also promote synchronised planning. To assist municipality to control and manage the land available in terms of open spaces.		
By-Law custodian	Planning and Economic Development: Human Settlements		
Related Policies and Legislations	<ul> <li>Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, Act 108 of 1996</li> <li>Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003</li> <li>Spatial Planning and Land Use Management By-Law</li> <li>Spatial Development Framework</li> <li>CALM Land Use Management Scheme, 2018</li> <li>Extension of Security of Tenure Act. 1997</li> <li>Land Court Procedures</li> <li>Civil Court Procedure and Rules</li> <li>Prevention of Illegal Eviction form and Unlawful occupation of Land Act (Act 19 of1998)</li> <li>Housing Act 107 of 1997</li> </ul>		
Applicability			
Applicability  Amendments to the  By-Law	This By-Law applies to all departments within the municipality  None		
By-Law Benchmark and References	NGQUSHWA LOCALMUNICIPALITY PREVENTION OF LAND INVASION POLICY MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL OF INFORMAL SETTLEMENTS BY-LAW (COGTA) GAUTENG LAND INVASION MANAGEMENT AND PREVENTION POLICY 2017		
Stakeholders Consulted	All CALM Departments and All Services Providers appointed and rendering Services for CALM		
Accountability	The Municipal Manager is accountable for the proper implementation of this By- Law in terms of the Systems Act.		

#### **Table of Contents**

1	PREAMBLE		5
2	DEFINITIONS		
3	SCOPE/APPLICATION OF BY-LAW		
4	OBJECTIVES		
5	BACKGROUND		
6	STATUS QUO		
7	LEGA	L PROVISIONS	7
8		DINTMENT OF AUTHORISED OFFICIAL	
8	.1 [	Outies of the Authorised Official	7
9	DUTI	ES OF WARD COUNCILLORS AND WARD COMMITTEE MEMBERS	8
10	ENFORCEMENT AND CONTROL MEASURES		
	9.1.	Prohibited Conduct	9
	9.2. occup	Prohibition of receipt or solicitation of consideration in respect of unlawful pation of land	9
	9.3.	Incidents of Land Invasion	10
	9.4.	Management and control of Authorised Informal Settlements	10
	9.5.	Termination of Unauthorised Informal Settlements	11
	9.6.	Disposal of building materials and personal property	12
11	ILLEGAL OCCUPATION OF PRIVATE LAND		13
12	CO	NTPAVENTION AND NON-COMPLIANCE	12

### CHIEF ALBERT LUTHULI MUNICIPALITY: PREVENTION OF LAND INVASION AND MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL OF INFORMAL SETTLEMENTS BY-LAW

#### 1 PREAMBLE

The Chief Albert Local Municipality recognises the right of its residents to life and to be treated with dignity. Council acknowledges its residents right to housing as contained in Clause 25 of the Bill of Rights of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, and further admit that such right may be limited as provided for in Clause 36 of the same Bill of Rights. Council will in its efforts and endeavours (together with Department of Human Settlement) of housing and settling its residents in need of housing and accommodation take into cognisance the provision and the spirit of all legislations relevant to housing and land settlements control. Council realizes that, there exist a great need for accommodation amongst its low income group or less fortunate residents, and that land for township development is scare within its area of jurisdiction. Council will do all in its power to ensure orderly development of places of residents for all its residents. This By-Law underpinned and based on the provision of the Prevention of illegal Eviction form and Unlawful occupation of Land Act (Act 19 of1998) and Extension of Tenure Security Act (Act 62 of 1997).

#### 2 **DEFINITIONS**

In this By-Law, unless the context indicates otherwise;

- i. "Authorized informal settlement" means any informal settlement which is recognized by the Municipality as an authorized informal settlement and which is regarded as a transit camp to house landless people who will be ultimately relocated to a formally established township;
- ii. "Building" or "Structure" means any hut, shack, tent, or similar structure or any other form of temporary or permanent dwelling or shelter;
- iii. "Consent" means the express or tacit consent, whether in writing or otherwise, of the owner or person in charge to the occupation by the occupier of the land in question;
- iv. "Court" means any division of the High Court or the magistrate's court in whose area of jurisdiction the land in question is situated;
- v. "Eviction" means the permanent removal, in accordance with the provision of a court order, of a person and his or her property from occupation of a structure or the land on which the structure is constructed, and includes a demolition and removal from the land of any building materials used to construct the structure, and "evict" has a corresponding meaning:
- vi. "Head of the household" means
  - a) Person in charge of the household;
  - b) the single parent, where the household has only one parent with dependants living permanently with him or her in the household; and any person in the household who has legal capacity to act and is recognized by the majority of the other persons in the household as the person responsible for the maintenance of the welfare and discipline within the household;
- vii. "Land" means any land within the area of jurisdiction of the Municipality, irrespective of whether such land belongs to the National Government, the Provincial Government, the Municipality or a private individual, company or other legal entity;

- viii. "Land invasion" means the illegal occupation of land or any settlement or occupation of people on land without the express or tacit consent of the owner of the land or the person in charge of the land, or without any other right to settle on or occupy such land;
- ix. "Land Invasion Reaction Unit" means a group of officers or workers consisting of any combination of one or more of the following components
  - a) members of the South African Police Services;
  - b) members of the staff of the bailiff, sheriff or messenger of the court with jurisdiction in the area:
  - c) members of a private security company contractually engaged by the Municipality to perform certain duties on its behalf; and
  - d) any combination of employees of the Municipality, which group is designated by the Municipality to assist the Senior Manager: Housing in the execution of his/her duties and to execute any eviction order contemplated by section 4 to terminate an unauthorized informal settlement;
- x. "Municipality" as defined in the Constitution of The Republic of South Africa;
- xi. "Municipal Council" means a municipal council referred to in section 157 (1) of the Constitution;
- xii. "Municipal Manager" means a person appointed on terms of section 54A.
- xiii. "Owner" means the registered owner of land, irrespective of whether such owner is the National Government, the Provincial Government, the Municipal or Private individual, company or other legal entity;
- xiv. "Unauthorized informal settlement" means any settlement which is not recognized by the Municipality as an authorized informal settlement which will be demolished and removed in terms of these By-laws.

#### 3 SCOPE/APPLICATION OF BY-LAW

This by-law shall apply to all land and informal settlements within the area of jurisdiction, which is Chief Albert Luthuli Local Municipality.

#### 4 **OBJECTIVES**

- i. To assist the Municipality to manage unlawful occupation and invasion of land and buildings in Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality
- ii. To assist municipality to control and manage the land available in terms of open spaces to prevent future unlawful occupation of land and formation of informal settlements.

#### 5 **BACKGROUND**

- Land Invasion refers to the illegal occupation of land, with the intention of establishing dwellings on it. An invasion could either be on a vacant land, or within an existing settlement.
- ii. Land invaders are often found in areas that are not habitable or that pose severe health and safety risks to occupants of the land and the natural environment. These include Eskom servitude areas, flood risk areas and open spaces that have not been habilitated.
- iii. Section 26 of the Constitution guarantees everyone the right to have access to adequate housing opportunities. This requires government to take reasonable legislative and other measures within the available resources to realize this right. Therefore, Council has a

legal and moral obligation to provide land for the development of residential areas to accommodate its residents in an orderly and proper manner as far as possible and within its financial constraints.

#### 6 STATUS QUO

- i. The Municipality accepts that the various informal settlements within its area of jurisdiction which have established prior to its existence and that effort have been made to provide rudimentary services to their respective residents.
- ii. The provision of such services and the numbering of existing shacks and buildings built in bricks and mortar does not in itself mean that the residents thereof are reside there permanently.
- iii. Such numbering does not itself in any manner whatsoever mean that the yard fenced in or not which a shack or building has been erected and so numbered is a stand.
- iv. The occupant of a shack or building in these areas has no right to the land and cannot claim ownership of the land on whatever basis including the period of occupation of such land. These include cases where money has been exchanged with whatever under the pretext that land acquisition is being effected by such transaction.

#### 7 **LEGAL PROVISIONS**

- Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality acknowledges that as a local government, land owner and the authoritative institution regulating the manner in which all areas under its jurisdiction have to develop according to its Integrated Development Plan, Spatial Development Framework and Land Development Objectives.
- 2. The Municipality acknowledges that it has legal and moral obligation to provide alternative accommodation to residents of the said areas who have been so residing for more than six (6) months if so required to relocate as provided for by Act 19 of 1998.
- 3. No person has a right to allow, encourage, motivate, organise and/or instigate the occupation of land of whatever nature without an expressed and written consent of Council.
- 4. Where such concurrent as mentioned in above happen, Council reserve the right to take any appropriate legal action to rectify the situation.

#### 8 APPOINTMENT OF AUTHORISED OFFICIAL

The Municipality may appoint or assign one of its officials from the Human Settlements Unit to manage and control all informal settlements in accordance with the provisions of this Bylaw. Where no official is appointed or assigned, the duties contained in this By-law are to be executed by the Office of the Municipal Manager or to whomever is delegated this function.

#### 8.1 Duties of the Authorised Official

The Authorised Official must -

- 1. Conduct regular surveys to determine the location, origin and extent of and the conditions prevailing in each informal settlement;
- 2. Monitor and control all informal settlements and take the necessary steps to prevent land invasion within the area of jurisdiction of the Municipality;

- Undertake and promote liaison and communication with local communities with a view to obtaining their understanding and cooperation regarding the prevention of land invasion in the area of jurisdiction of the municipality;
- 4. Keep a register of all the residents who are entitled to reside in each authorized informal settlement, and in such register the following details must be entered in respect of each structure in each authorized informal settlement
  - a) the number allocated to the stand or site on which the structure is constructed;
  - b) the names, and identity number of the head of the household who is entitled to occupy the structure;
  - c) the names, identity numbers and relationships to the head of the household of each and every other person occupying the structure as a member of the household
  - d) the reference number of the municipal file that contains a copy of the contractual agreement in respect of the structure;
  - e) the number of the structure 's rental account;
  - f) the number of the structure 's municipal services account:
  - g) the previous address of the household that is entitled to occupy the structure; and
  - h) the names, addresses and telephone numbers, if any, of at least two family members of the head of the household who do not live at the same address as the household that is entitled to occupy the structure;
- 5. Ensure that all residents living in an authorized informal settlement are registered in the Municipality's Housing Demand Data Base;
- 6. Submit written report on the control and management of any informal settlement, or the conditions prevailing in the informal settlement, if and when required to do so by the municipality;
- 7. For the purpose of informing residents of informal settlements and all other persons visiting informal settlements, ensure that
  - a) The contents of these By-laws are communicated to all residents of every informal settlement; and
  - A copy of these By-laws is posted and maintained in every informal settlement in a prominent place at the venue where the residents' committee contemplated in section 6 usually holds its meeting;
- 8. Allocate to each site or stand in an authorized informal settlement an individual number as the temporary address of the site or stand and must ensure that such number is legibly painted or inscribed in a prominent place on the site or stand;
- 9. Perform any other duty or function which may be necessary to ensure the proper management and control of an informal settlement.
  - 10. The Authorised Official must adopt the necessary preventative measures in order to curb informal settlement.

#### 9 DUTIES OF WARD COUNCILLORS AND WARD COMMITTEE MEMBERS

 The Ward Committee and the Manager or his representative, must meet on a regular monthly basis, and at such meetings the Municipality must consult the residents committee on all matters relating to the authorized informal settlement and communicate matters of general concern to the residents of a collective basis. After such meetings, it is the sole responsibility of the Ward Committee to inform the individual residents of matters discussed at the meetings.

- Special meetings of residents may be convened from time to time by the Ward Committee to communicate with and inform the individual residents of matters relating to the authorized informal settlement.
- 3. The Ward Committee must give notice of a meeting of the residents of the authorized informal settlement by placing the notice prominently at a venue whose location has been determined by the Ward Committee and communicated to the residents at an official meeting of the residents.

#### 10 ENFORCEMENT AND CONTROL MEASURES

#### 9.1. Prohibited Conduct

- 1. No person may
  - i. individually or as part of a group
  - ii. clear any land of any vegetation without prior written consent of the owner
  - iii. invade or occupy any land to which he or she does not have lawful title
  - a) erect a structure on any land to which he or she does not have lawful title
  - b) continue with the construction of an incomplete structure after a written warning to stop construction was issued by the municipality;
  - c) demarcate or continue to demarcate any piece of land with any form of material, including, but not restricted to string, rope, pegs, stones, pebbles, wire, wood or any other material after a written warning to stop any form of demarcation was issued by the municipality;
  - d) move or remove any demarcation or surveying pegs affixed in terms of any law;
  - e) without the written consent of the municipality allow, encourage, motivate, organise or instigate the occupation of any land;
  - f) move furniture into an informal structure in order to defeat the provisions of any law;
  - g) without the written consent of the municipality allow a shack or structure to be unoccupied for more than 3 months;
  - h) erect any additional shack or structure on a site in any existing informal settlement or reception area;
  - i) lease any additional shack or structure on a site in any existing informal settlement or reception area;
  - j) access land in contravention of a sign prohibiting such access;
  - k) occupy a structure on any land to which he or she does not have lawful title;
  - I) sell any land or structure on any land to which he or she does not have lawful title; or
  - m) Interfere with or obstruct an authorised officer in the execution of his or her duties in terms of this by-law.

## 9.2. Prohibition of receipt or solicitation of consideration in respect of unlawful occupation of land

1. No person may directly or indirectly receive or solicit payment of any money or other consideration as a fee or charge for arranging or organizing or permitting a person to occupy land without the consent of the owner or person in charge of that land.

- 2. Any person who contravenes the provisions of subsection (1) is guilty of an offence and liable on conviction to a fine or to imprisonment for a period not exceeding two years, or to both such fine and such imprisonment.
- 3. The court that convicts any person of a contravention of this section must order any money or other consideration which was received by that person and which has been seized to be forfeited, and the money and the proceeds of the consideration may be paid to the persons from whom the money or consideration was received, and where such person or persons cannot be positively identified, such money or proceeds of the consideration must be paid into the Municipality's Revenue Account.
- 4. If any money or other consideration has been received in contravention of subsection (1), but has not been seized or made available for purposes of confiscation, the court that convicts a person of a contravention of this section may order the amount proved to the satisfaction of the court to have been received by such person to be paid to the person or persons from whom the money or consideration was received, and where such person or persons cannot be positively identified, the money or proceeds of the consideration must be paid into the Municipality's Revenue Account. Such order has the effect of a civil judgment and may be executed against such person who received the money or consideration as if it were a civil judgment in favour of the person or persons from whom the money or other consideration was received or in favour of the Municipality.

#### 9.3. Incidents of Land Invasion

- The Authorised Official must, within a period of 24 hours after he or she becomes aware
  of an incident of land invasion or the existence of a newly established informal
  settlement, irrespective of whether such informal settlement was established as a
  consequence of an incident of land invasion or not—
  - Make a determination of the status of the informal settlement as an authorized or an unauthorized informal settlement; and
  - b) Inform the residents of the informal settlement of the status of the informal settlement in accordance with section 5 or section 7, whichever is applicable in the circumstances.
- 2. In the event of the status of an informal settlement completed in subsection (1) being determined as an authorized informal settlement, the Authorised Official must deal with the matter in accordance with the provisions of section 9.4 of this By-law
- 3. In the event of the status of an unauthorized informal settlement, the Authorised Official must deal with the matter in accordance with the provisions of section 9.5 of this By-law.

#### 9.4. Management and control of Authorised Informal Settlements

- 1. As soon as a determination of the status of an authorized informal settlement has been made and within the period contemplated in section 9.3 (1), the Authorised Official, personally or through any other Council official designated by the Municipal Manager to assist him or her for that purpose, visit the informal settlement and notify the residents of the status of the authorized informal settlement in the manner contemplated in section 9 (2) or by means of a letter delivered in the circumstances.
  - 2. The Authorised Official must compile a comprehensive register of all the residents who are entitled to reside in the authorized informal settlement contemplated in subsection

- (1), and the following details must be entered in respect of each structure in the authorized informal settlement—
- a) the number allocated to the stand or site on which the structure is constructed;
- b) the name and identity number of the head of the household who is entitled to occupy the structure;
- c) the names, identity numbers and relationship to the head of the household of each and every other person occupying the structure as a member of the household;
- d) the reference number of the file of the Municipal Manager or his representative that contains a copy of the contractual agreement in respect of the structure;
- e) the number of the structure 's rental account;
- f) the number of the structure 's municipal services account;
- g) the previous address of the household that is entitled to occupy the structure; and
- h) the names, address and telephone numbers, if any, of at least two family members of the head of the household that is entitled to occupy the structure
- 3. The Authorised Official must ensure that the names, addresses and other relevant details of all residents living in an authorized informal settlement contemplated in subsection (1) are registered in the Municipality's Housing Demand Data Base.
- 4. The Authorised Official must allocate to each site or stand in an authorized informal settlement contemplated in subsection (1) a unique number as the temporary address of the site or stand and must ensure that the number is legibly painted or inscribed in a prominent place on the site or stand.
- 5. The Authorised Official must ensure that no new unauthorized structure s are constructed in the authorized informal settlement contemplated in subsection (1) and that no new unauthorized residents take up residence in the authorized informal settlement by implementing appropriate measure to manage, monitor and control the occupancy of residents in the authorized informal settlement in general.
- 6. Any unauthorized occupancy in an authorized informal settlement contemplated in subsection (1) must be dealt with in accordance with the provisions of section (9.5)
- 7. In respect of an authorized informal settlement contemplated in subsection (1), the Authorised Official must ensure that—
  - a) the Municipality's Finance Department institutes, operates and maintains an appropriate account for services rendered by the Municipality to each registered structure in the authorized informal settlement and for any charges levied for the right of occupation of a particular site or stand in the authorized informal settlement; and
  - b) Such an account is supplied to the head of the household of each registered structure in the authorized informal settlement.

#### 9.5. Termination of Unauthorised Informal Settlements

- 1. As soon as a determination of the status of an unauthorized informal settlement has been made and within the period contemplated in section 9.3 (1), the Authorised Official must, personally or through any official designated—
  - a) Inform residents of a structure in the unauthorized informal settlement that their occupation of the structure and the site or stand on which it is situated is illegal; and
  - b) Visit the informal settlement and notify the residents of the status of the unauthorized settlement by means of a written notice hand-delivered to each structure in the informal settlement.

- 2. The written notice contemplated in subsection (1) must notify the residents of the structure to vacate the structure and remove any building materials and other personal property from the unauthorized informal settlement within a period of 24 hours after receipt of the written notice.
- 3. If the residents notified in terms of subsection (1) cooperate and vacate their structures and remove their building materials and other personal property from the site or stand in the unauthorized informal settlement, the Authorised Official or designated official must take such steps as he or she may deem appropriate to prevent a recurrence of any incident of land invasion or illegal land occupation on that site, stand or unauthorized informal settlement and must regularly monitor the situation to ensure the non-recurrence of such land invasion or illegal land occupation.
- 4. If the residents notified in terms of subsection (1) fail to cooperate and vacate their structure s and remove their building materials and other personal property from the site or stand in the unauthorized informal settlement, the Authorised Official must immediately institute the necessary legal procedures to obtain an eviction order contemplated in subsection (5).
- 5. Within a period of 24 hours after the expiry of the period stipulated in the written notice contemplated in subsection (1), the Authorised Official or designated official must lodge an application in a competent court to obtain an Eviction Order contemplated in section 4, 5 or 6 of the Prevention of Illegal Evection from and Unlawful Occupation of Land Act, 1998 (Act No. 19 of 1998), against any person or persons jointly or severally, occupying or residing in a structure or on a site or stand in the unauthorized informal settlement.
- 6. The Authorised Official, within a period of 24 hours after obtaining the eviction order referred to in subsection (5), deploy the Land Invasion Reaction Unit to execute the eviction order and to terminate the unauthorized informal settlement.
  - a) Evicting the residents of the unauthorised informal settlement;
  - b) Demolishing and removing all shacks and removing all building materials and other personal property from the unauthorised informal settlement
  - c) Disposing of the building materials and other personal property in accordance with the provisions of this by-law,
  - Any costs incurred by the Authorised Official for the purposes of executing the
    provision of these By-laws must be borne by the Municipality in accordance with its
    approved budget.

#### 9.6. Disposal of building materials and personal property

- In the execution of the provisions of section 7 (6), any building materials and other
  personal property belonging to a resident or occupier of a structure in a unauthorized
  informal settlement must be removed and stored in a safe place by the Authorised
  Official.
- 2. If the building materials and other personal property contemplated in subsection (1) are not claimed by their owner within a period of three months after the date of the removal and storage, the building materials and personal property must be sold to the best advantage by the Authorised Official, or a person designated by the Municipal Manager who must after deducting the amount of any charges due or any expenses incurred, deposit the net proceeds into the Municipality's Revenue Account, provided that—

- Subject to the laws governing the administration and distribution of estate, nothing in this subsection contained may deprive the heir of any deceased person of his or her right to the balance of the proceeds of the property; and
- b) Any building materials or other personal property which is, in the opinion of the Municipal Manager or his representatives, valueless and unable to realize any meaningful amount may be destroyed, abandoned, dumped or otherwise disposed of by the Municipal Manager or his representative.
- 3. The Municipal Manager or his representative must compile and maintain a register which records
  - a) Particulars of all buildings material or other personal property removed and stored in terms of these By-laws;
  - The date of the removal and storage of building materials or other personal property in terms of subsection (1) and the name and site or stand number of the owner of the building materials or personal property; and
  - c) the signature or right thumb print of the person who is claiming ownership and to whom delivery of building materials or other personal property has been made; or full details of the amount realized on the sale of the building materials or other personal property in terms of subsection (2) and the date of the sale; and
  - d) if building materials or other personal property has been destroyed, abandoned, dumped or otherwise disposed of in terms of subsection (2), a certificate by the Municipal Manager or his representative to the effect that the building materials or personal property was valueless.
- 4. Neither the Municipality nor any of its officials acting within the reasonable scope of their authority are liable for any loss of or damage to property or injury to any resident or occupier of a structure in an unauthorized informal settlement or any other person for any reason whatsoever.

#### 11 ILLEGAL OCCUPATION OF PRIVATE LAND

- 1. Where a private land owner allows or permit the occupation of land for habitation purposes by a group of people who are in his/her employ or not, the Municipality shall insist that its Building Health and Security Regulations be adhered to by the land owner.
- 2. In an instance where a private landowner does not act against illegal occupier of his/her land, the Municipality may act in terms of Section 6 of Act 19 of 1998 to obtain an order for eviction at the cost of the said landowner.

#### 12 CONTRAVENTION AND NON-COMPLIANCE

- 1. Contravention Notices have to be issued by the Municipal Manager or delegated official. Authority for prosecution or Legal Action rests with the Administration Arm of the Municipality, unless Delegated Authority is given.
- 2. Where Notice has been issued but not obeyed, this is Non Compliance and is a Contravention. Authority for prosecution or Legal Action rests with the Administration Arm of the Municipality, unless Delegalized Authority is given

#### 13 **DATE OF COMMENCEMENT**

This By-law will take effect on the day of publication.

Mr M.S DLAMINI
MUNICIPAL MANAGER

CLLR M.W MNGOMEZULU
SPEAKER

